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Independent Auditors Report
To The Board of Directors of Engineered Coated Fabric Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Special purpose Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Special Purpose Financial Statements of Engineered Coated Fabric
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policy and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
accompanying Special Purpose Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024
are prepared in all material respects, in accordance with the basis of accounting specified in Note 2 to
the special purpose financial statement. -

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs’) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) (“Code of Ethics”), together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the Special Purpose Financial Statements in accordance
with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with the relevant rules issued thereunder. This includes design, implementation and maintenance
of such internal control relevant to the preparation of the Special Purpose Financial Statements that are
free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

The Financial Statements have been prepared for the purpose of reflecting the transition from previous
Indian GAAP to Ind AS as prescribed by Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards.
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In preparing the Special Purpose Financial Statements, the management and those charged with
governance are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the averride of internal
control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management of the Company.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

Other Matter

1. The Statutory Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024, prepared in
accordance with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read together with
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, were audited by predecessor auditor “Mamta K Mehta and Associates” whose report
expressed an unmodified opinion.

2. As informed to us by the management of the Company, the predecessor auditors do not hold a valid
peer review certificate as issued by the ‘Peer Review Board’ of the ICAl and have therefore, expressed
their inability to perform any work on the financial information for the year ended March 31, 2023
and March 31, 2024, to be included in Offer Documents. Accordingly, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, the Guidance Note, and pursuant to SEBI Communication, we have audited the Special
Purpose Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024.

For Chaturvedi Sohan & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 118424W

Sohan Chaturvedi

Partner

Membership No. 030760
UDIN: 25030760BMZWRY4615

Date: 03 September, 2025
Place: Mumbai.
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ENGINEERED COATED FABRIC PRIVATE LIMITED

SPECIAL PURPOSE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st March, 2024

(Amount in INR millions, unless otherwise stated )

Particulars Notes ha AS L AS,M
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and cquipment 7 39.34 45.92 52.54
Right-of-use asscts 8(a) 1333 - -
Capital work in progress
Investments 9 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other financial assets 10 2.86 314 3.76
Non current tax assets (net) 11 - 2.37 2,60
‘Total non-current assets 55.53 5143 58.90
Current assets
Inventories 12 73.55 67.38 0.02
Financial asscts
Trade receivables 13 22 184.22 66.90
Cash and cash cquivaicnts 14 9.71 1.37 0.0
Other bank balances 15 0.86 0.80 0,80
Other financial asscts 16 0.08 0.68 0.68
Other current asscts 17 0.68 1.10 6.03
Total current assets 107.59 255.55 74.53
TOTAL ASSETS 163.12 306.98 133.43
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 18 5.51 551 5.51
Other equity 19 73.90 40.10 33.53
Total equity 79.41 45.61 39.04
LIABILITIES
Non-current li: s
Financial liabilitics
Bormrowings 20(a) - - 6,74
Leasc liabilitics 8(b) 8.40 - =
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 3s 0.97 1,53 0.77
Employee benefit obligations 21 2.39 1.71 1.73
Total non-current liabilities 11.76 3.24 9.24
Current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
Bomowings 20(b) - 7.78 9.11
Lease liabilitics 8(b) 4.59 - -
Trade payables 22
Total outstanding ducs of micro and small enterprises - - -
Total outstanding dues other than above micro and small 53.06 236.29 -
cnterprises
Other financial liabilitics 23 10.30 12,22 75.12
Employee benefit obligations 24 0.88 0.73 0.63
Current tax liabilities (net) 25 1.68 - =
Other current liabilitics 26 144 1.11 0.29
Total current liabilitics 71.95 258.13 B5.15
Total liabilities 83.71 26137 94.39
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 163.12 306.98 133.43
Summary of material aceounting policics 2&3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Chaturvedi Sohan & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Sohan Chaturvedi
Partner
Membership No:030760

Place: Mumbai
Datc:03 September 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Engincered Coated Fabric Private Limited

Yogesh Kusumgar
Dircctor
DIN: 01080769

Place: Mumbai
Datc:03 September 20235

Siddharth Kusumgar
Dircclor
DIN: 01676799

Place: Mumbai
Date:03 September 2025




ENGINEERED COATED FABRIC PRIVATE LIMITED

SPECIAL PURPOSE STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 March, 2024

(Amount in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Partulses Ny 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
INCOME

Revenue from operations 27 552,18 977.51

Other income 28 0.27 0.23
Total income 552.45 977.74
EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed 29 444.47 909.75

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 30 (36.69) (30.36)

Employee benefits expense 31 27.62 20.14

Finance costs 32 1.11 1.74

Depreciation and amortization expense 33 6.92 6.73

Other cxpenses 34 59.40 60.89
Total expenses 502.83 968.89
Profit before tax 49.62 8.85
Income tax expense 35

Current tax 13.50 0.15

(Excess) provision for tax relating to prior ycars 2.82 1.78

Deferred tax (0.55) 0.66

Total income tax expense 15.77 2.59
Profit for the year 33.85 6.26
Other comprchensive income / (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement gain/(loss) of net defined benefit liability (0.06) 0.41

Income tax cffect on above 0.01 (0.10)
Other comprchensive income for the year, net of tax (0.05) 0.31
Total comprehensive income for the year 33.80 6.57
Earnings per equity share:
- Basic EPS (INR) 614.30 113.67
- Diluted EPS (INR) 614.30 113.67
Summary of material accounting policies 2&3

The accompanying notes are an intcgral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Chaturvedi Sohan & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No: | ]‘?‘

5 |

Sohan Chaturvedi
Parmer
Membership No:030760

Place: Mumbai
Date:03 Scptember 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Engineered Coated Fabric Private Limited

Yogesh Kusymgar

Date:03 September 2025

Siddharth Kusumgar
Dircctor
DIN: 01676799

Place: Mumbai
Datc:03 September 2025




ENGINEERED COATED FABRIC PRIVATE LIMITED
SPECIAL PURPOSE CASH FLOW TEMENT FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024
(Amount in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particuluirs For the year ended For the year ended
A1 March 2024 31 March 2023

Caush flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 40.62 B85
Adjustments for:
Add :
Deprecintion and amortizution expenses 6.92 6.73
Finance cost 1,10 1.74
Loss on salc of property . plant and cquipment 0.05 =
Foreign Exchange Loss - -
Unwinding of discount on securily deposils 0.01) -
Interest income (021 (0.10)
Financial guaranice commission income (0.06) (0.13)
Operating Profit before working capital changes 57.41 17.09
Changes in operating assets and liabilitics
Adjustments for: Operation Asscls
Decrease / (Inerease) in trade reccivables 161.51 (117.32)
(Increase) in inventories 6.17) (67.36)
(Iner in loans and olher financial assets 0.25 &
Decrease/(Increase) in other assets 0.43 4.93
Adjustments for: Operation Liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables (183.23) 236.29
Inerease / (Deerease) m provisions 0.83 0.08
Increase / (Decrcase) in other financial liabilities (1.92) (62.88)
Increase / (Deerease) in other labilitics 0.33 0.82
Cash generated from operations 29.44 11.66
Income tax paid (net) (12.35) (1.30)
Net eash flows gpenerated from onerating activities (a) 17.09 10.38
Cash flows from investing activities - =
Capital work in progress and change in capital advance and creditor for capital items - -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (0.01) (0.11)

Changes in ROU and lease (0.41) -
Interest received 0.16 0.10
Net cash flows (used in) invesring activitics (b) (0.26) (0.01)
Cash flow from financing activities
Changes in borrow (7.78) (8.07)
Principal paid on lease liabilities (030 -
Interest paid on lease linbilities (0.09) &
Interest paid on borrowings (0.32) (0.99)
Net cash fows gencrated from (H-5D)I {9.07)
Net inereas sh and eash equivalents (a+bte) B34 127
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ol the year 1.37 0.10
Cash and eash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note no 17) 9.71 137

{a) Changes in liubilities arising from financing activities and non-cash financing

Non- cash changes

As at 31 March 2024

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 Cash flows - -
Non-current borrowines - - - -
Current borrowings 7.8 7.78 - -
Total liabilitics from financing activities 778 7.78

Particulars As at 01 April 2022 Cash Nows h h changes As at 31 March 2023
Non-current borrowings 674 - -
Current borrowings o1 1.33 - 7.8
Total lix cs from finaneing activities 15.85 8.07 - 7.8

(h) Non-cash Iransactions from investing activitics

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 Cash flows

Non-cash changes Fair
value adiustment

As at 31 March 2024

Non-current investment 0.00

0.00

As at 01 April 2022 Cash flows

Purticulars

Non-cash changes Fair

value adjustment

Asat 31 March 2023

Non-current investment 0.00

0.00

The accompanying netes are an integral pari of the financial statements.

1. The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indireet method set
out in Indian Accounting Standard 7 (IND AS 7). "Statement of Cash Flows"
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013.

2. Figures in bracket indicate an outllow
As per our repont ol even date For and on behall of the Board of Direclors
For Chaturvedi Sohan & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Finn Registration No: 1158424W

el

Sohan Chaturvedi
Pariner
Membership No:030760

sh Kusumgar
Director
DIN: 01080769

P Mumbai
Date:03 September 2025

Place: Mumbai
Date:03 September 2025

ENGINEERED COATED FABRIC PRIVATE LIMITED

Siddharth Kusumgar
Director
DIN: 01676799

Place: Mumbai
Daic:03 Sepiember 2025




ENGINI

CERED COATED FABRIC PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCIL 2024

(Amount in INR miillions, unless othenwis

(6]

0]

ied)

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Partleulars.

Nao. of Shares.

Asat 1 Apell 2022
Chianies in cquity share cupial

S5.100

As at 31 March 2023
Chanyes in equity share capital

55100

As ut 31 March 2024

ss.100

OTIER EQUITY

Partieulars

Seeurlties premiun

Cenernl reverve

Retulned earnings

Other comprehensive
Income

Balance as at 1 April 2022
Profit fur the year

Otbier Comprebensive Income for the year (net of txi

S0

0.3

Bulance as at 31 March 2023

S.40

031

Purticulars

Seeurities premium

Retulned earnings

Other comprehensive
Income

Total

Balance as at 1 April 2023
Profit for the year

Add (Less) - Gout {luss) on FYTOCT equity imvestments (net of tax) -

RERL
RRE )

(&)

(0.05)

4010
EEE
(0.05)

Balance as a1 31 Murch 2024

68,03

0.26

TA.80

The acconpanying notes are an inegral part of the fnancial statements.

As pef vur repont of even date

For Chaturved] Sobun & Co.
Chartered Accountants

1CAL Firm Regiswution Not |18424W

Sotan Chaturved|

Panner
Membership No:030760

Place: Mumhai
Date:03 Seprember 2025

For and on belialf of the Donrd of Dircetors

Engineered Coated Fubric Privare Li

W’*

Direetor
DIN: 0105076

Ploge: Muihay
Date:3 September 2025

Siddhurth Kusamgar
Director

DIN: 01676799




ENGINEERED COATED FABRIC PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part Of The Special Purpose Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 March, 2024
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

24

()

(1)

(e}

(d)

(e)

kX

0

0

Company overview

Engineered Coated Fabric Pvt Ltd' was incorporated on 19(h June 1983, The company was incorporated willi the main objective of manufacturing processing, designing, importing.
cxporting, whole salc trading and distribution of all kinds of [abrics and textile materials, (o undertake fabrication and sales and marketing of all types of [abrics textile materials. The
Registered office of the company is located in Mumbai

Busis of Preparation of Financial Statements

Statement of Compliance with Ind AS
These Mnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companics Act. 2013 (the "Act") read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended [rom time to time,

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024, 31 March 2023 and the opening Balance Sheet as at 1 April 2023 have been restated in accordance with Ind AS for
Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented exeepl where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on acerual basis and under historical cost convention, except for the following:
- Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding linancial instruments)

- Employces defined benefit obligation and leave encashment are recognised as per actuarial valuation,

Classification into current and non-current:
The Company presents assets and liabilitics in the balance sheet based on eurrent/ non-current classilication, An assct is treated as current when it is;
Bascd on the nature of business and the time between the acquisition of asscls for processing and their realisation in Cash or cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its normal

Use of estimates, judgements and assumptions

The preparation of financial stalements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management 1o make estimate and assumptions that alTeet the reported amount of asscts and liabilities
as at the Balance Sheet date, reported amount of revenue and expenses for the year and disclosures of conlingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date, The estimates and assumptions
used in the accompanying [inancial statements are based upon the Management's evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as at the date of the financial statements. Actual
results eould dilfer from these estimales. Estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on a periodie basis. Revisions 10 accounting estimates, il any, are recognized in the year
in which the estimates are revised and in any future years affected. Refer Note 4 for details on estimates and judgments.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements arc presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which s also the functional currency of the Company, in denomination ol million with rounding ofTto two decimals as
permitted by Schedule 111 to the Act exeept where otherwise indieated.

Going Concern

“The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis as the Management is satisfied that the Company shall be able to continuc its business for the foreseeable future and no
material unceriainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the going coneern assumplion. In making this assessmenl, the Management has considered a wide range of information
relating to present and (ulure conditions. including [uture projections of profitabilily, cash Mows and capital resources.

Offsetting financial instruments

The Company generally reports financial assets and financial liabilities on a gross basis in the Balance Sheet, They are ofTset and reported net only where it has legally enforceable
right o offset the recognised amounts and the Company intends 1o cither settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and scttle the liability simultancously as permitied by Ind AS.
Similarly, the Company offscts incomes and expenses and reports the same on a net basis where the netting ofT reflcets the substance of the transaction or other events as permitied by
Ind AS.

Material accounting policies
A summary of the material accounting policies applicd in the prepar:
all periods presented in the Financial Statements.

ion of the Financial Statements arc as given below. These accounting policics have been applicd consistently to

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at historical cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, il any. Cost o property, plant and
cquipment comprises its purchase price net of any discounts and rebates, any import dutics and other taxes (other (han those subsequently recovered [rom the tax authorities), any
direetly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended usc.

The Company identifics and determines cost of cach part of an item of property plant and equipment separately if'the part has a cost which is significant 1o the toial cost of that item of
property plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially different (rom that of the remaining item.

Subsequent costs arc included in the assel’s carrying amount or recognized as a separale asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will fow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derceognised when
replaced. All other repairs and mainienance are charged 1o Statement of comprehensive income during the year in which they are incurred.

Transition to Ind AS
The Company has cleeted 1o continue with the carrying value of all its property. plant and equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at transition date to Ind AS, meusured
as per the Previous GAADP and use that as the deemed cost as at transition date pursuant 1o the exemption under ind AS 101 *First-lime Adoption ol Indian Accounting Standards’.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives
Depreciation on property. plant and equipment is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line method as per the uselul life prescribed in Schedule 11 1o the Companies Act. 2013,
or re-assessed by the Company. The Company has estimated the following as useful lile to provide depreciation on its Property, Plant & Equipment.

The uselul life. residual value and the depreciation method are reviewed at least at cach financial year end. L'the expectations differ from previous estimates. the changes are accounted
for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

Name of the asset

Buildings

PMant & Machincry
Electrical Installation
Furniture & Fixtures
Oflice Equipment

Computers




3.02

3.04

307

(@)

(U]

Depreciation on addition te property plant and equipment is provided on pro-r.la basis from the dale ol acquisition, Depreciation on sale/deduction [rom property plant and equipment
is provided up 1o the date preceding the date ol sule, deduction os the case may be. Gains and losses on disposals arc determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount, These
are included in Statement of Comprehensive Income under ‘Other expenses’ £ 'Other income’ respectively.

Impairment of non-financial asscts

The Company asscsses, at cach reporting date, whether thers is an indication that an asset may be impaired, 1T any indication exists, or whea annual impairmient (es| or an asset is
required, the Company estimates the assct’s recoverable amount, An assel’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU's air value less costs of disposul and its value in
usc.

The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
asscts, When the carrying amount of an assel or CGU exceeds ils recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down 1o its recoverable amount.

In asscssing value in use, the estimated future cash Nows are discounted to their present value using o pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market asscssments of the time value of
mongy and the risks specific lo the assct.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on most recent budgets and forecast caleulations, which arc prepared scparately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the
individual asscis are allocated,

An assessment is made at cach reporting date o determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairnicnt losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only il there has been a change in the
assumptions used 1o determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.

The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined. net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised Tor the asset in prior years, Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the assel is carried a1 a revalued
amount, in which casc. the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase,

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value.

Cash and cash equivalents and Cash flow statement
Cash and cash cquivalent in the balance sheet comprise eash at banks. cash on hand, fixed deposits having a original maturity ol less than 3 months which are subject 1o an
signilicant risk of changes in value.

Cash Nows are reported using the indireel method. whereby net profits before tax are adjusted for the effeets of the transactions of a nen-cash nature and any deferrals or aceruals of
pasl of future cash receipts or payments. The cash Nows from regular revenue generating, investing and inancing aclivities ol the company are segregeied.

ions and contingent liabilities

ons are reeognized when there is a present obligation as a resull ol'a past even, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying cconomic benefits will be required to
seitle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the oblization. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure requized 1o settle the present
obligation at the Balance sheet date.

Conlingent liabilitics are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the exisience of which will be conlirmed only by the nceurrence or non-nceurrence of
one or more unceriain (uture events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events, where ii is cither not probable that an cutflow of
resources will be required 1o settle the abligation or a reliable estimate ol the amount cannot be made.

L from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain [uture
events not wholly within the control of the entity. A contingent asset is discloscd, where an inflow of ceonomic benefits is probable.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures certain financial instruments al [air value at each balance sheer date.

Fair value is the price that would be reccived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to scll the asset or transfer the liability 1akes place cither:

» In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

B In the absence of a principal market. in the most advantageous markel for the assel or

ility aceessikle to the Company.

The best estimate of the [air value ol a [inancial 1 on milial ition 18 Iy the t ion price — i.e. the fair value of the consitderation given or receved. 1f the
Company determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an
identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data Irom ebservable markets, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value. adjusied to
defer the differenee between the Fair value on initial recognition and (he transaction price. Subsequently that dilference is recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Income on an
appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supporicd by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

All asscts and liabilities for which virlue is i or diselosed in the financial stalements are categorized within the lair value hicrarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

» Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics

» Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is dircetly or indirectly observable

» Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that iznificant (o the fair value measurement is unobservable.

Financial instruments

A [linancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a linancial assct of onc entity and a financial liability or equity instrument ol another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Al initial recognition. financial asset is measured at its fair value plus the transaction cost dircetly attributable 1o the acquisition of the financial asset in the case of 4 fnancial asset
measured not at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction eosts directly anributable to the acquisition of financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss are recognized
immediatcly in the Statement of comprehensive income. | lowever. trade reecivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price.
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Subsequent measurement
For purposcs ol subscquent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

a) at amortized cost: or

) at fair value through other comprehensive income: or

¢) at fair value through profit or loss.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assels and the contractual terms of the cash Mows,

Amortized cost: Asscts that are held for colleetion of contractual cash Mows where those cash Mows represent solcly payments of principal and interest are measured a1 amortized
cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the elfcetive interest rate method (EIR).

Alier initial measurement. such financial assels are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the effective imterest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the Statement of
comprehensive income,

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT): Assets that are held lor collection of contractual cash Mows and for selling the financial assets. where the assets’ cash ows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
OCI, except lor the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and forcign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in Statement of comprehensive income.
When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OC1 is reclassificd from cquity to Statement of comprehensive income and recognized in
other gains / losses.

Fuir value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the eriteria for amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at fair viilue through profit or loss. Interest income from these
financial asscis is included in other income.

Equiry inseruments: All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Tquity instruments which are held for trading arc classified as at FVTPL. For all other
equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevoeable clection (o present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election
on an instrument- by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and it is irrevocable.

In case ol equily instruments classified as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no recycling of the
amounts lrom OCI to Statement of comprehensive income., even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equit

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL eategory are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of comprehensive income.
Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments™, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (
Tollowing [inancial assets and credit risk exposure:

Trade receivables:

The Company follows 'simplificd approach’ lor recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 115 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers™. The application of simplilicd h does not require the Company 1o track ch: n credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance

based on lifetime ECL at cach reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

L) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the

Other financial assets: Seeurity Deposits

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant inerease in the eredit risk since initial
recognition. IT eredit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss

However, il credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. IFin subsequent years, eredit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in eredit risk since initial recognition, then the entily reveris Lo recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

Lifetime ECL is the expected credit loss resulling from all possible default events over the expeeted life of a [inancial instrument. The 12 month ECL is a portion of the liletime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after year end.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash Mows that are due to the Company in accordanee with the contract and all cash Mows that the entity expeets to receive (
shortfalls), discounted at the original effective mterest rate (EIR). When estimating the cash [ows, an entity is required to consider all contractual terms of the [inaneial instrument
(including prepayment, extension ele.) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rire eases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated
reliably, then the entity 1s required to use the remaining contractual term ol the financial instrument.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the year is recognized as income/expense in the Statement of comprehensive income. For [inancial assets measured at
amortised cost, ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the Balance Sheet. The allowanee reduces the net carrying amount.
Until the asset meets write ofl eriteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowanee from the gross carrying amount

Derecognition of financial assets

A Nnancial asset is derecognised only when

a) the rights 1o receive cash Mows [rom the nancial asset is transferred or expired

b) retains the contractual rights 1o reeeive the cash Mows of the linancial cl, bul assumes i contractual obligation 1o pay the received eash Mows in full without material delay 1o ene
or mare reci|

Where the financial asset is transferred then in that case linancial asset is derecognised only if substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the [inancial agset is translorred.
Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards ol ownership ol the financial asset, the linancial assct is not derecognised.

sub

Where the lnancial asset is neither transferred, nor the entity rel.
dereengnized only il the Company has not retained contral of the
extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset. In that case. the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

ally all risks and rewards ol ownership ol the financial asscl, then in that case [inancial asset is
incizl asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the

On derecognition of a [inancial asset. the dilference between the carrying amount and the consid received is eniscd in the Si of comprehensive income.

Finaneial liabilities and equity instruments

Cla

fication as debr or equiry

An instrument issued by a Company are cl
financial liability and an cquity instrument.

es of as equily in accordance with the substance ol the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
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Equity instruments

An cquily instrument is any contract that evidences a residu

nterest in the asscls ofan entity afler deducting all o its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direet issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducied directly in equity, No gain or loss is recognised in Statement of comprehensive income on the
purchase, sale, issue or caneellation of the Company's own equity instruments. Dividend paid on equity instruments are dircetly reduced [rom cquity.

Financial linbilitics

Inirial recognition and measurement

Finaneial liabilitics are classified. al ir

ial recognition, as financial liabilities a1 Fair value through profit or loss or at amortized cosl. as appropriate.
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable iransaction costs.
Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilitics depends on their classification, as described belows

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss include financial |
nealit ar lnce
Derivative financial instruments

ilitics held for trading and financial liabilities desig

ated upon initial recognition as at fair value thro

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreig
counterparty for such contracts is gencrally a bank.

exchange forward contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on forcign currency exposurcs. The

Any derivative that is cither not designated as hedge. or is so designated but is ineffective as per Ind AS 109, is categorized as a financial assct or finaneial Tiability, at fir value
through profit or loss.

Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially al fair value and attributable iransaction costs are recognized in the Statement of comprehensive income when incurred.
Subsequent 1o initial recognition, these derivatives arc measured al fair value through profit or loss and the resulting exchange gains or losses are included in other income/other

Borrowings

Aller initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured al amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losscs arc recognized in Statement off
comprehensive income when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that arc an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of comprehensive income.

The entity's long-term horrowings are all at a variable interest rate; therefore, the unamortised transaction costs incurred on these borrowings are amortized on a straight-line basis
instead ol using the effeetive interest rate (EIR) method,*

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

All the finaneial liabilitics of the Company arc subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are reeognised in the Statement of comprehensive
income when the liabilitics are derccognised as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into aceount any discount or premium on
acquisition and lecs or costs that arc an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance eosts in the Statement of comprehensive income.,

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the abligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. When an existing linancial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of comprehensive income as finance costs.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities arc offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right 10 offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to seitle on a net basis or realize the assets and settle labilities simultancously. The legally enforecable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event ol default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty.

Corporate Guarantee

Corporate puarantees recevied from related party are recognized as financial assct upon initial measurement.
This recognition is recorded as a delerred income asset (such as ‘uncarned linancial guarantee commission') at their fair value, with 2 correspending credit reeognized as a deemed
distribution o the promoter's/sharcholder.

The initially recognized fair value of the guaraniee is amortized over the term of the guarantec on a systematic basis, reflecting the time patiern of the usage of the guaramiee. The
amortization is recognized in the profit or loss account under other income,

Leases

As a lessee:
The Company assesses, whether the contract is. or contains. a lease. at its inception. A contract is, or contai

5. a lease il the contract conveys the right to:

a) eontrol use of an identified asset,
b) obtain substantially all the cconomic benefits from use of the identilied asset, and
¢) direet the use ol the identified asset

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a1 lease liability al the lease commeneement date. The right-of-use asscl is initially measured at cost. which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any I direet costs incurred and an estlimate of costs 1o dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.




The right-ol-usc asset is subsequently depreciated using the straighi-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end ol the uselul life of the right-ol-use asset or the
end of the lease term, The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is
periodically reduced by impairment losses, il any, and adjusted for eertain re-measurcments of the lease lability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid al the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or,
il that rate cannot be readily determined. company's incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising [rom a change in an index or rate, if there is o change in the Compavy's estimate of the amount expected 10 be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or il the Company changes its assessment ol whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option, When the leasc liability is remcasured in this
way. a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount ol the right-of-use assct, or is recorded in profit or loss il the carrying amount of the right-of-usc assct has been
reduced 1o zero.

The Company has cleeted 10 not recognize leases with a lease term of 12 months or less or low- value Ieases in the balance sheet, and lease costs for those short-term leases or low-

value leases are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term in the Statement of comprehensive income. The Company has clected the lessee practical expedient to combine
Jease and non-lease components and account for the combined unii as a single lease component.

3.10 Employee Benefits
(i Defined benefit plans

Gratuity: The Company's gratuily benelit scheme is a delined benelit plan. Company's nct obligation in respect of a defined benefit plan is caleulated by estimating amount of future
benefit that empleyees have carned in return for their service in the current and prior periods: that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Present value of obligation under
such benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using projected unit eredil method which recognizes each period of service that give rise to additional units of employce
benefit entitlement and measures cach unit separately to build up [inal ebligation. Obligation is measured al present values of estimated fulure cash Nows. The discounted rates used
Tor determining present value are based on market yields on Government Securities as at the balance sheet dates,

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

i. The curreni service cost of the defined benelit plans, recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income in employee benelits expense, reflects the inerease in the defined benefit
obligation resulting lrom employee service in the current year, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements, Past service costs, which comprise plan amendments and curtailments, as
well as gains or losses on the seitiement of pension benefits are recognised immediately in the Statement ol comprehensive income when they oceur.

iil. The nct interest cost is caleulated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan
cost in the Statement of comprehensive income.

asscts. This cost is included in linance

iii. Re-measurements, comprising ol actuarial gains and losses, the efTeet of the asset eciling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefi liability and the
return on plan assets (exeluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benelit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debil or
eredit to retained earnings through OCL in the period in which they occur, Re-measurements are not reclassified 1o the Statement of comprehensive income in subsequent periods,

(ii) Defined eontribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as expense when emiployees have rendered services entitling them 1o such benelits.,
The company provides benefits such as provident fund to its employees which is treated as delined contribution plan.
(iii) Short-term employee benefit obligations
Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of recciving employee services are classificd as short-term employee benefits and are recognised in the period in which the

employee renders the related service. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benelits to be paid in exchange
for employce services is recognized as an expense as the retated service is rendered by employees.

(iv) Compensated absences:

Compensated absences which are expeeted to occur within twelve months afier the end of’ the period in which the employee renders the related serviees are recognised as undiscounted
liability at the balance sheet date. Compensated abscnces which arc not expeeted to occur within twelve months afier the end of the period in which the employee renders the related
services are recognised as an actuarially determined liability at the present value of the defined benelit obligation at the balance sheet date using the Projecied Unit Credit Method.

Presentation and disclosure:

For the purpose of presentation of defined benefit plans and compensated absenees, the allocation between the current and non-current provisions has been made as determined by an
acluary.
Revenue Recognition

31

Revenue from with is recognised when control of the goods or services are lrans(erred fo the customer, at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale of goods is recognised at a point in time when control of the product has been transferred at an amount that refleets the
consideration 1o which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services, and there are no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance
of the producis and the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement 1o the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold. The
point of time of transfer of control to customers depends on the terms ol the trade/ delivery.

Revenue toward: sfaction ol a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The
transaclion price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account ol trade discounts, volume rebates offered by the Company as part of the contract and
any taxes or duties collected on behall of (he Government such as goods and services tax, ele.

(i) Other Operating revenue

Export Benefit (Government Grant)
Revenue from export benelits arising [rom Remussion of Dutics and Taxes an Export Products, merchandisc export incentive scheme, duty d
export hasis at the rate at which the entitlements acerue and is included in the *Other Operating Income”

scheme. are o I on post

(b Other income

(i Interest income

For all financial instruments classified and measured at amortized cost. interest income is recorded using the clleetive interest rate (EIR).
The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated Nuture cash reecipts over the expected life ol the financial instrument or a shorter peried. where appropriate. 1o the net carrying

amount of the financial asset. Interest income is included in other income in the Statement ol comprehensive income.
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Tax expense lor the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in determination of the net profit or loss for the year,

Current ineome tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for (he year as delermined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 196 1. Advanee taxes and
provisions for current income taxes arc presenied in the balance sheet afier ollsetting advance tax paid and income tax provision arising in the same tax Jjurisdiction and where the
Company intends 1o scttle the asset and liability on a net basis.

Current income 1ax relating Lo items r ised outside the S ent of comprehensive income is recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction cither in OCT or dircctly in
equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respeet 1o situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject Lo interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred rax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences, being differences between the carrying amount of asscts and liabilitics and corresponding tax bases used in the computation of’
taxable profit. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the 1ax laws enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting date. Deferred 1ax liabilities are recognised for all
temporary dillerences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assels are recognised to the exient that it is probable that 1axable prolit will be available against which the deduetible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax eredits
and unuscd lax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics arc offset if such ilems relate to laxes on income levied by the same governing tax laws and the Company has a legally enforceable right or such set
AT

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer probable that sufTicien! taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred 1ax asset to be wtilised, Unrecognised deferred tax nssets are re-assessed al cach reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset 1o be recovered.

Delerred 1ax relating to items recognised outside St of comprehensive income is 1 ised oulside profit or loss (cither in other comprehensive income or in cquity). Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or dircctly in equity.

Earnings Per Share

Basic carnings per share are caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity sharcholders by the weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding
during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during fhe year and for all the years presented is adjusted for events. such as bonus shares. other than the
conversion of potential cquity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purposc of caleulating diluted carnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of s
during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

ares owstanding

Segment Reporting

An operating scgment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may carn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly
reviewed by the company’s chiel operating deeision maker (CODM) to make decisions for which discrcic linancial information is available. The Company is engaged in selling of
zoods. The CODM identilied cntire business as a single reportable segment, henee segment reporting is not applicable.

Material accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires & to mal I and ptions that afleet the reported amounts of revenues, cxpenses, assets and
liabilitics. the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilitics. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes thal require a material

adjustment 1o the carrying amount of assets or liabilities afTected in future years.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources ol estimation uncertainty at the year end date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment o the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are deseribed below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
lnancial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due 1o market changes or eircumstaneces ari that are
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Useflul lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

As described in the significant accounting policies, the Company reviews (he estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment an
period. Uselul lives of intangible assets is determined on the ba
the depreciation /amortization expense in [uture periods.

tangible assels at the end of cach reporting
of estimated benefits 1o be derived from use of such intangible assets. These reassessments may result in change in

Actuarial Valuation

The determination of Company's liability towards defined benefit obligation to employees is made through independent actuarial valuation including determination of amounts 1o be
recognised in the Statement of comprehiensive income and in Other Comprehensive Income. Such valuation depend upon assumptions determined afler taking into account discount
rale, salary growth rate, expected rate of return, mortality and attrition rate. Information about sueh valuation is provided in notes to the [inancial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets
In assessing impairment, management cstimates 1he recoverable amount of cach assel or cash-generating units based on expected fulure cash Nows and uses an interest rate 1o discount
them. Estimation uneertainty relates to assumptions about future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate.

Contingencies
Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outllow of resources, ilany, in respect of contingencies/ claim/ litigation against company as it is not possible to predict
the outcome of pending matters with aceuracy.

Provisions

Provisions arc recognised in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outllow of funds resulting from past operations or cvents that can reasonably be estimated.
The timing of recognition requires application of judgement (o existing [acls and circumstances which may be subject to change. The litizations and elaims to which the Company is
sed by management and in cerain cases with the support of external specialised lawyers.

exposed are

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix (o calculate expected credit loss (ECL) for trade receivables and contract asscts,

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed defaull rtes. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated.

The assessment of the correlation between historical obscrved defaull rtes and ECLs is a1 sig ni cstimate. The Company’s historical credit loss experience may also not be

representative of customer’s actual default in the future.
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New Standards/ Amendments and Other Changes adopted Effective 1 April 2022 or thereafter

The Ministry of Corporate Alfairs ("MCA") has notified Companics (Indian Accounting Siandard) Amendment Rules, 2027 dated March 31, 2023 1o amend certain Ind AS which are
¢lfective from 01 April 2022:

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendment to Ind AS 1 Presentation of financial statements

The amendments aint Lo help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more uselul by replacing the requirement for entities to diselose their *significant’ accounting
policics with a requirement to disclose their *material” accounting policies and adding guidance on how entitics apply the coneept of materiality in making decisions about accounting
policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurcmient. recognition or presentation of any items in the financial statements,
Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to Ind AS 8 Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors

The amendment to Ind AS §, which added the definition ol accounting estimates, elarifics hat the efecls of a change in an input or measurement technique are changes in accounting
estimates. unless resulting from the correction of prior perind errors, These amendments clarily how entities make the distinetion between changes in accounting estimate, changes in
accounting policy and prior period crrors, The distinclion is important, because changes in accounting estimates arc applicd prospectively to future transactions and other future cvents,
but changes in accounting policics are generally applicd retrospectively to past transactions and other past events as well as the current period.

The amendments docen't have a material impact on these financial siatements,

Deferred Tax related to Assers and Linbilities arising from a Single Transaction — Amendments to Ind AS 12 Income raxes

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applics Lo transactions that give risc to equal 1axable and deductible
lemporary dilferences such as leases.

The Company has recognised a separate deferred tax asset in relation 1o its lease liabilities and a deferred tax liability in relation 1o its right-of-use asscis. Since. these balances qualify
for offsct as per the requirements of paragraph 74 of Ind AS 12, there is no impact in the balance sheet,

The amendments doesn't have a material impact on these financial statements.,

Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate AlTairs (*“MCA™) nolifics new standards or amendments to the existing standards under C ies (Indian A ing Standards) Rules as issued from time to
time. For the year ended Mareh 31, 2025, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.

First-time adoption of Ind-AS

These lnancial statements are the first set of Ind AS financial statements prepared by the Company. Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with
Ind AS applicable lor year ending on 31 March 2025, together with the comparative year data as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, as described in the material accounting
policies. In preparing these financial statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 April 2023,

Exemprions availed on first time adoption of Ind AS

Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, allows firsi-lime adoplers certain exemptions from the retrospective application of ecrtain requirements under Ind
AS. The Company has accordingly applicd the following exemptions.

Optional Exemption

Deemed Cost of property plant and i and other i assets

Ind AS 101 permits a first time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all its property, plant and equipment and intangible asscts as recognised in the financial
statement as at the date of Iransition to Ind AS, measured as per the Previous GAAP and use that as its deened cost as at the date of ransition, Accordingly, the company has elected
1o measure all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assels at their previous GAAP carrying value.

Revenue Recognition

The Company has availed the following practical expedients in applying the standard retrospectively:

a. For completed contracts within the same annual reporting period, no restatement has been done;
b. For contracts that were completed before the transition date, no restatement has been done,

Leases

The Company has availed the following practical expedients in applying Ind AS 116:

1. With leases previously classilicd as operating Ieases according to Previous GAAP, the lease liability was measured at the present value of the outstanding lease payments,
discounted by the incremental borroy rate al March 31, 2024, The respeetive right-of-use asset was ised al an amoaunt equal to the lease liability:

2. Regardless of their original lease term, leases for which the lease term ends Latest on March 31, 2024, were recognised as short-term leases;
3. Atthe date of initial application. the measurement of a right-of-use assel excluded the initial dircer costs.

4. 1lindsight was considercd when determining the lcase term if the contract contains oplions to extend or terminate the leascs.

Mandatory Exceptions on first-time adoption of Ind AS
Estimates

An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition 1o Ind AS shall be consistent with cstimates made [or the same date in accordance with Previous GAAP (alter
adjusiments to reflect any difference in aceounting policies), unless there is objective evidenee that those estimates were in crror.

Ind AS estimates are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conlormity with Previous GAAP. The Company made estimates for following items in accordance with
Ind AS a1 the date of transition as these were not required under Previous GAAP:
(i) Impairment of financial assets bascd on expected credit Joss model.

Der ition of i ial assets and financial liabilities

Ind AS 101 requires a first time adopter 1o apply the derecognition provisions of Tnd AS 109 prospectively for transactions oceurring on or alter the date of transition 1o Ind AS.
Accordingly. the Company has applicd the derecognition requirement for [inancial assets and lnancial Liabilities in Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or alter date
Al trncition ta Ind AG

Classifieation and measurement of financial assets




(d)

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to asscss classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of fucts and eircumstances that exist on the date of tranisition 10 Ind AS,
Accordingly, the Company has applicd the above requirement prospectively,

Impairment of financial assers

Tnd AS 101 requires an entity to assess and delerming the impairment allowance on [nancial asseis as per Ind AS 109 using the reasonable and supportable information thar is
available without undue cost or effort 1o determine the eredit risk at the date that financial instruments which were iitially recognised and compare thal to the credit risk at the date of
transition to Ind AS. Company has applicd this exception prospectively.




ENGINEERED COATED FABRIC PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

(Amount in INR millions, unless othenwvise stated)

6.04 Reconciliations

(a) Reconciliation of total equity as at 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2022

Notes to As at As at
Particulars first-time 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
adoption

Equity share capital 5.51 5.51
Other equity 40.99 34.45
Sharcholder’s cquity as per Previous GAAP (A) 46.50 39.96
Add/(Less): Adjustment
Impairment allowance for expected credit losses

on rade receivables (ii) (4.27) (4.27)

on security deposits (i) - -
Tmpact on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 (iii) - -
Fair valuation corporate guarantee (iv) 0.63 1.25
Grautity and leave encashment (v) 0.27 -
Fair value of security deposit (vi) 3 =
Deferred tax impact on Ind AS adjustments (viii) 2.48 2.10
Total adjustments (B) (0.89) (0.92)
Sharcholder’s cquity as per Ind AS (A-B) 45.61 39.04

(b) Reconciliation of total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year ended 31 March 2023
Notes to E

Eaticulaps first-time adoption 31 M::c‘;,lgnz.z
Profit aflter tax as per Previous GAAP (A) 6.54
Add/(Less): Adjustment
Impairment allowance for expected credit losses

on trade receivables (i) -

on security deposits (ii) -
Impact on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 (iif) =
Fair valuation corporate guarantee (iv) (0.62)
Grautity and leave encashment (v) (0.04)
Fair value of security deposit (vi) -
Remeasurement (gain)/loss of net defined benefit liability (vii) -
Deferred tax impact on Ind AS adjustments (viii) 0.38
Total adjustments (B) (0.28)
Profit after tax as per Ind AS (C=A-B) 6.26
Add/(Less): Adjustment
Remeasurement loss of net defined benefit plan (vii) 0.41
Income tax effect on above (0.10)
Remeasurement loss of net defined benefit plan, net (D) 0.31
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (E= C-D) 6.57

(¢) Notes to first-time adoption

(i) Deemed Cost of property plant and equipment and other intangibie assets

The Company has availed the deemed cost exemption as per IND AS 101 in relation to property. plant and equipment and other intangible assets as on the date of transition
i.e. 1 April 2022 and hence the Net block carrying amount (as per IGAAP) has been considered as the gross block carrying amount (as per Ind AS) on that date i.e. 1 April

2022.

(ii) Impairment allowance for expected credit losses

Under Previous GAAP, the Company has created provision for impairment of receivables based on the incurred loss model. Under Ind AS 109 "Financial Instruments”. all
financial assets recorded at amortised costs are required to recognise a loss allowance for expected credit losses. Ind AS requires an entity shall always measure the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses for trade receivables using the simplified approach method and for security deposit as per general approach
method. At the date of transition 1o Ind AS and at each reporting dates, the Company applied the simplified approach for rade receivable and general approach for security

deposit to record loss allowance.




(iii) Impact on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 i
Under Previous GAAP, a lease is classified as a finance lease or an operating lease, Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating expense in the statement of
profitor loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term, Under Ind AS 116, a lessee applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets and recognises lease liabilities to make lease puyments and right-of-use assers representing the right to use the underlying assets,
At the dute of transition to Ind AS, the Company has applied the modified retrospective approach and mensured the lease linbilities at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. Right-of-use assets were measured at the amount equal to the lease labilities and also include the
impact of fair valuation of security deposit.

(iv) Impact on fair value of corporate guarantee
Under the previous GAAP, corporate guarantees received from related party were disclosed under related party transactions. However. under Ind AS 109, "Financial
Instruments,” corporaie guarantees received from related are recognized as financial asset upon initial measurement.

This recognition is recorded as a deferred income asset (such as 'unearned financial guarantee commission') at their fuir value. with a corresponding credit recognized as a
deemed distribution to the promoter/shareholder.

The initially recognized fair value of the guarantee is amortized over the term of the guarantee on a systematic basis. reflecting the time pattern of guarantee usage. The
amortization is recognized in the profit or loss account.

(v) Impaet of Transaction cost on Long term borrowings
Under the previous GAAP, borrowings were carried at their principal amount, and transaction costs, primarily in the form of upfront processing fees, were expensed in the
profit and loss. However. under Ind AS 109, "Financial Instruments.” long-term borrowings are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Transaction costs are debited to the borrowings rather than expensed in the profir and loss.

Since the entity’s long-term borrowings are all at a variable interest rate, the transaction costs incurred on these borrowings are amortized on a straight-line basis to the
profit and loss.

(vi) Fair valuation of sccurity deposit
Under Previous GAAP. interest free security deposits are recorded at it’s transaction value. Under Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments™, all financial assets are required to be
initially recognized at fair value. Accordingly, the Company has fair valued these security deposit under Ind AS. Difference between the fair value and transaction value of
the security deposit has been recognized as prepayment lease rental (part of ROU asset) which has been amortised over it's lease term. The discounted value of the security
deposits is increased over the period of lease term by recognising the notienal interest income grouped under *other income”.

(vii) Remeasurement gain/(loss) of net defined benefit plan
Under Previous GAAP, actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit obligation were recognised in the standalone staiement of profit and loss. Under Ind AS, all actuarial
gains and losses are recognised in the other comprehensive income. Further to the above, the deferred tax impact on above transaction has alse been regrouped from
standalone statement of profit and loss to other comprehensive income as per guidance under Ind AS 12 *Income taxes’.

(viii) Deferred Tax
Retained eamings and statement of profit & loss has been adjusted consequent to the Ind AS transition adjustments with corresponding impact to deferred 1ax, wherever
applicable,

(ix) Statement of cashflow

No material impact on transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS on the statement of cash flows,
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ENGINEERED COATED FABRIC PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024
(Amount in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

8

LEASES
Company as a lessce
The Company has entered into various agreements to take premises on rent.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applicd to leasc liabilitics as at 1 April 2022 is between 8.65%

Information about leascs for which the Company is a lessee is presented below:
(a) Right-of-use asset

Particulars

Land and
Building

Total

Gross carrying amount (deemed cost)
Balance as at 1 April 2022
Additions

Balance as at 31 March 2023

Gross carrying amount as on st April 2023
Additions

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 April 2022
Depreciation for the vear

Balance as at 31 March 2023

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 April 2023
Depreciation for the year

0.38

0.38

Balance as at 31 March 2024

0.38

0.38

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2023

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2024

13.33

(b) Lease liabilities

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Asat
01 April 2022

Balance of lease liability at the beginning of the year
On adoption of Ind AS 116

Add: Additions during the year 13.30 - -
Add: Interest on lease liabilities 0.09 - -
Less: Lease payments (0.40) - -
Add: Translation difference
Balance of lease liability at the end of the year 12.99 - -
Current portion of lease liabilities 4.59
Non-current portion of lease liabilities 8.40 -
(c) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss
The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:

For the year

Particulars Refer note ended 31 March | For the year ended

2024

31 March 2023

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets

33

0.38

Interest expense (included in finance costs)

32

0.09

Expense relating to short-term leases (included in rent expenses under other expenses)

Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (included in rent expenses

Variable lease payments (included in rent expenses under other expenses)

(d) Amounts recognised in the cash flow statement
The cash flow statement shows the following amounts relating to leases:

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended 31 March | ended 31 March
2024 2023

Principal payment of lease liabilities 0.31 -

Interest payment on lease liabilities 0.09 -




ENGINEERED COATED FABRIC PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCII, 2024

(Amount in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

9 INVESTMENTS (NON CURRENT)

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Asat
01 April 2022

Investment in equity instruments

Investment in other entities at cost (unquoted)

100 (31 March, 2023: 100 and 01 April, 2022: 100) Equity Shares of The Shamrao Vithal Co op Bank Ltd 0.00 0.00 0.00
(Face Value Rs.25: Tolal Value Rs.2500/-) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 0.00 0.00 0.00
Aggregate amount ol unquoted investments 0.00 0.00 0.00
Agpregate amount of impairment in value ol investments - - -
10 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (NON CURRENT)
Particulars As at Asat Asat
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 | 01 April 2022
Sccurily deposils 2.86 3.14 3.14
Financial Guarantee Assct - - 0.62
Total 2.86 3.14 3.76
11 NON CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)
Particulars As R AETE Asat
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 | 01 April 2022
Income tax asset - 2.37 2.60
Total - 237 2.60
12 INVENTORIES (VALUED AT LOWER OF COST OR NET REALISABLE VALUE)
Particulars Asat Asat As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

01 April 2022

i

Raw Material 5.59 36.57 -
Semi Finished Fabric 3.15 - -
Finished Fabric 63.91 30.38 0.02
Stores & Sparcs (.90 0.43 -
Total 73.55 67.38 0.02
13 TRADE RECEIVABLES

il Asat Asat Asat
Faticulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 | 01 April 2022
Unsecured

Considered good* 2698 1R8.49 71.17

Less- Allowance for expected eredit loss 4.27 4.27 4.27
Total 22.71 184.22 66.90
March 31, 2024 Current

Outstanding for following periods from due date of Receipts
Particulars Unbilled Not Due Less than | 6 months More than
2-3 years Total
6 months -1 year 3 vears

Undisputed trade receivables

— considered good - - 2271 - - - 22.71

— which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - i 2 5

— credit impaired = . - - & - - -
Disputed trade receivables

— considered Doubt ful - - - - 4.27 - 4.27

—which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - " - -

— eredit impaired - - - - - -
Subrotal - - 22.71 - 4.27 - 26.98
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss =4.27
Total 22.71
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March 31, 2023

Current

Particulars

Unbilled

Not Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of Receipts

Less than
6 months

6 months
=1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than
3 vears

Total

Undisputed trade receivables
—considered good
—which have significant increase in credit risk

—credit impaired
Disputed trade receivables
— considered Doubt ful
— which have significant increase in credit risk

— credit impaired

184.22

184.22

Subtotal

184.22

Less: Allowance lor expected credit loss

Total

184.22

April 01, 2022

Current

Particulars

Unbilled

Not Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of Receipts

Less than
6 months

6 months
-1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than
3 vears

Total

Undisputed trade receivables
— considered good
—which have significant increase in credit risk

= credit impaired
Disputed trade receivables
— considered Doubt ful
—which have significant increase in credit risk

— credit impaired

66.90

66.90

4.27

Subtotal

66.90

7117

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

~4.27

Total

66.90

CASII AND CASII EQUIVALENTS

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Asat
01 April 2022

Balances with banks

In current accounts 9.62 1.29 0.07
Cash on hand 0.09 0.08 0.04
Total 9.71 1.37 0.10

OTHER BANK BALANCES

Particulars Asat Asat As at

31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 | 01 April 2022
Fixed deposit

Against bank guarantees 0.86 0.80 0.80
Against letter of credit - 3 3

Total 0.86 0.80 0.80
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT)
Particulars Asat As at As at

31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 | 01 April 2022
Financial Guarantee Asset - 0.63 0.63
Interest accrued on deposit 0.08 0.05 0.05
Total 0.08 0.68 0.68
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Particulars Asat At Asat

31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 | 01 April 2022
Balance with statutory & government authorities 0.40 0.86 5.86
Advance paid to creditors - = 3
Prepaid expenses 0.24 0.16 0.17
Employee's loan 0.04 0.08 -
Total 0.68 110 6.03
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ENGINEERED COATED FABRIC PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF TIIE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCII, 2024
(Amount in INR millions. unless otherwise stated)

19 OTHER EQUITY

Particulars Asat As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Securilies premium 5.40 5.40 5.40
General reserve 0.21 0.21 0.21
Retained carnings 68.29 34.49 27.92
Total 73.90 40.10 33.53

() Securities premium

Particulars Ayt A5

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance 540 540
Add : Sccuritics premium credited on share issuc - -
Closing balance 540 540

(b) General reserve

Particulars Asal As At

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance 0.21 0.21
Add : General reserve eredited during the vear - -
Closing balance 0.21 0.21

(c) Retained Earnings (refer notes below)

Particulars Asat As At

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance 34.49 27.92
Add: Profit/ (Loss) for the year 33.85 6.26
Add/(Less) - Remeasurement gain (loss) of net defined benefit plan (0.03) 0.31
Closing balance 68.29 34.49

Nature and purpose of reserves
(a) Sccuritics premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus
shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companics Act, 2013

{b) The amount in general reserve can be utilised only in accordance with the specilic requirements of Companics Act. 2013

(c) Retained carnings arc the profits/(loss) that the Company has carned/incurred till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other
distributions paid to sharcholders.

(c) Retained carnings are the profits/(loss) that the Company has carnedfincurred till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other
distributions paid to sharcholders.

(d) The Company has clected o recognise changes in the [air value of certain investments in cquity securitics in other comprehensive income. These
changes arc accumulated within the Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income within equity. The Company transfers amounts [rom this
reserve to retained carnings when the relevant equity securities are derecognised.

Note
20 Borrowings
(:t) Non-current borrowings

Asat As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Secured
(1) Term loan (from Bank) (refer sub-note 1) - 7.78 15.85
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowing - (7.78) 9.10
- - 6.74
Total ] ] 6.74
(b) Current borrowings
As at As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Secured
Current maturities of long-term borrowings(Term Loan) - 7.78 9.11
Total - 7.78 9.11

Sub-note 1- Term loans

a.Term Loan was sanctioned by SVC Bank Ltd and secured by way hypothecation of Machinery, charge on Property Located at Pardi, Gujarat. Personal
guarantee of Directors and Corporate guarantee of Kusumgar Corporates Pvt Ltd. Rate of interest on term loan 18 10.90 % p.a.

b.The loan was repaid on 6th Nov 2024 and charge has been released by Bank.

21 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (NON CURRENT)

Particulars Avat Asar Agat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Gratuity Payable 1.87 1.73 1.73
Add:Expense 0.57 0.55 =
Add/(Less):0CI 0.06 (0.41) S
Less:Current Liability (0.59) (0.48) -
Total 1.91 1.40 1.73
Leave encashment payable 0.57 0.63 -
Add:Expense . 0.19 0.19 -
Less:Contribution Paid (0.58) (0.50) -
Add:OCI 0.59 0.25 -
Less:Current Liability (0.29) (0.25) -
Total 0.47 0.32 -
Total 2.39 1.71
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TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

As at

01 April 2022

Total outstanding dues ol micro enterprises and small enterprises

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

5 : 2 7 s 33.06 236,29 -
Total outstanding ducs ol creditors other than micro cnterprises and small enterprises™
Total 53.06 236.29 -
Particulars Asat Asat As at

01 April 2022

(i) The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small supplicrs as at the end ol the year:
- Principal
- Interest

(ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of scction 16 of the Micro. Small
and medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment
made 1o the supplicr beyond the appoeinted day during cach accounting year.

(i} The amount of payments made 1o micro and small supplicrs beyond the appointed
day during cach accounting year.

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond appointed day during the vear) bul withoul adding the
interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006,

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting
year.

(vi) The amount ol further interest remaining duc and payable even in the succeeding
years. until such date when the interest ducs above arc actually paid to the small
enterprise.

Trade Pavables ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2024

Current

Outstanding fo:

r following periods

from due date of Pavment

Unbilled
Dues

Payables Not

Particulars Due

Less than 1

1-2 years
year

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Undisputed trade
nayables

- MSME

- Others.

Disputed trade payables

53.06

- MSME - - = 3
- Others - - - -

Total - - 53.06 -

$3.06

As at 31 March 2023

Outstanding fo

r following periods

from due date of Payment

Unbilled
Dues

Payables Not

Particulars Due

Less than 1

1-2 years
vear

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Undisputed trade
payables
- MSME -
- Others -

Disputed trade payables

- MSME - - - -
- Others = # 2 =

236.29

Total - - 236.29 -

236.29

As at 01 April 2022

Current

Outstanding for following periods

from due date of Payvment

Unbilled
Dues

Payables Not

Particulars
Due

Less than 1

1-2 years
vear Y

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Undisputed trade
pavables
- MSME - =
- Others 7 g 33 .

Disputed trade payables

- MSME - - - -
- Others - = 5 =

Total - £ = =




N
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OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CURRENT)

Particulars Asat As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Employee dues payable 1.88 0.72 0.69
Outstanding Intcrest on term loan 0.07 0.11
Expenses pavables 842 1144 74.32
Total 10.30 12.22 75.12
*Derivatives contract not designated as hedge are carried at fair value through profit or loss
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CURRENT)
Particulars Asiar Asar Anar

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Leave Encashment Payable 0.29 0.25 0.63
Gratuity Payable 0.59 048 -
Total 0.88 0.73 0.63
Current tax liability
Particulars Asat Asat Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Income tax pavable 1.68 - -
Total 1.68 - -
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Particulars Asat Asat Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Statutory dues 144 1.11 0.29
Total 1.44 1.11 0.29
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REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 March 2024

For the year
ended
31 March 2023

Revenue from contract with customer
Sale of products*

Manufactured goods 439.59 930.04
Sale of services 110.71 44.71
550.30 974.76

Other Operating Income
Sale of scrap 1.88 2.76
1.88 2.76
Total 552.18 977.51

Refer note 46 for revenue disclosures as per Ind AS 115.

Amount due to related parties included in Sale of goods of INR 1114.67 lakhs (31st March 2023: INR 1748.69 lakhs)
Amount due to related parties included in Sale of Service of INR 1107.05 lakhs (31st March 2023: INR 444.45 lakhs)

OTIIER INCOME

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 March 2024

For the year
ended
31 March 2023

Foreign exchange gain
Interest income on

Fixed deposit 0.06 0.01
DGVCL Deposit 0.09 0.05
Other interest income 0.01 0.03
Unwinding discount on Security deposit 0.01 -
Financial Guarantee commission income 0.06 0.13
Sundry balance written back 0,05 -
Miscellaneous income S =
Total 0.27 0.23

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

For the year

For the year

Particulars cnded ended

31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Opening Stock 36.57 -
Add: Purchases™* 41348 946.32
Less: Closing stock 5.59 36.57
Total 444.47 909.75 |

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 March 2024

For the year
ended
31 March 2023

Inventorices at the end of the year:

Finished Stock 63.91 30.38
Semi Finished Stock 3.15 -
67.07 30.38
Inventorics at the beginning of the year:
Finished Stock 30.38 0.02
Semi Finished Stock - -
30.38 0.02 ]
Net (inereasc)/ decrease -36.69 -30.36 |

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

For the year For the year

Particulars ended cended

31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Salaries & wages 25.73 18.59
Staff welfare cxpenscs 0.49 0.56
Gratuity expenses 0.57 0.55
Leave Encashment Expense 0.83 ().44
Total 27.62 20.14 |




33

34

Finance costs

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 March 2024

For the year
ended
31 March 2023

Interest expense on

Borrowings 032 0.99

Lease liabilities 0.09 -

Financial Guarantee Liability 0.69 0.75
Bank charges 0.01 =
Total 1.11 1.74]

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6.54 6.73
Depreciation of right 1o use assets 0.38 -
Total 6.92 6.73 |
OTHER EXPENSES
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023

Power and fuel 34.62 40.64
Job work and labour charges* 7.32 6.53
Factory Expense 0.20 0.16
Consumption of stores 4.03 0.97
Travelling and conveyance 1,14 0.19
Freight and forwarding charges 0.51 0.74
Professional and legal fees 0.32 0.65
Repairs on

Plant and machinery 1.13 1.00

Building 0.48 0.28

Others 0.84 0.10
Admin charges - -
Rates and taxes 0.01 0.11
Testing charges (Research & Development) - 0.01
Insurance charges 0.36 0.21
Rent expenses® 4.16 434
Telephone expenses
Loss on sale of assets 0.05 -
Foreign Exchange Loss 0.03 -
Payment to auditors (Refer Note 34.1) 0.25 0.13
Sundry balance's written of - 0.00
Security charges 0.56 0.55
Misc. and Admin exp 3.39 4.30
Total 59.40 60.89 |

Details of payment to auditors (exclusive of Goods and Secrvice tax and OPE)

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 March 2024

For the year
ended
31 March 2023

As auditor:

To statutory auditors:
-For Audit

Total

0.13

0.13




ENGINEERED COATED FABRIC PR

TE LIMITED

SPECIAL PURPOSE NOTES FORMING PART OF THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

(Amount in INR millions, unless otherwise siated)

(a)_Income tax

For the year

Particulars Fox thie year cuded ended
R 31 March 2023
Current tax 13.50 0.15
(Excess) provision for 1ax relating (o prior years 2.82 1,78
Deferred tax 10.55) 0.66
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 15.77 2.59

(b) _Income tax expense charged to Other Comprehensive income (OCIY

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year
ended
31 March 2023

Ttems that will not be reelass| to profit er loss

Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability 0.01 (0.10)
Gain/(loss) on FVTOCI equity =
Income tax charged to OCI 001 (0.10)

(¢} Reconciliation of the income tax expenses to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rafe o the profit / (loss) before income taxes is

summarized below:

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year
ended
31 March 2023

Profit before tax 49.62 585
Enacted income tax rate applicable to the Company 25.17% 25.17%
Current tax expenses/(Credit) on profit/(loss) before 1ax at the enacted income 1ax rate 12.49 223
Effeet of non deductible expense 1.11 051
Tax effect due 1o non taxable income (0.10) (2.57)
Impact of Ind AS 116 0.09 -
Impact of employee benelit (0.10) (0.14)
Impact of MAT (0.19) 1.33
Fair valuation of corporate gusranice (0.16) (0.16)
Provision for eredit allowanees on trade receivables - -
Impact of Leave encashment - 0.02
Adjustment of temporary difTerence (0.19) 041
Others 2.8 1.78
Income tax expense 15.77 2.59

The Company has opted for new tax rate under section 115BAA of Income Tax Act, 1961 [rom the FY 2021-22. [lence, the ellective tax rate for current and deferred 1ax for

current year is 25.168% (22% + surcharge + cess).

(d) Deferred tax balances:

Particulars Anat Azl
31 March 2023 41 April 2022

Deferred tax assets

Fair voluation of secunty deposit - -
Provision for credit allowances on trade receivables (1.08) (1.08)
Lease liabilities - -
Corporate Guaraniee =

Leave Encashment (0.14) (0.16)
MAT Entitlement (0.36) (169
Provision lor employee benelits (0.47) (0.44)

(2.05) (3.36)

Deferred tax liability

Property. plant and equipment 343 3.82
Right-ol-use assets = =
Corporate Guarantee. 0.16 0.31
Fair value gain on Invesiments in unquoted equity shares. -

Provision for employee benelits - -
Leave Encashment - -
Security Deposit . -

359 4.13

Deferred tax linbility [Net) 1.53 0.77
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EARNINGS/ LOSS PER SHARE

AL PURPOSE NOTES FORMING PART OF THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH. 2024

Letter of eredir accepted -
Corporate guarantce given to related party -

Particulaie As at For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders 33.85 6.26
Weighted avernge number of equity shares outstanding (Nos.) in lakhs .06 .06
Face Value per share - Equity sh: TNR 10 each)
earnings per share (INR) 614.30 113.67
butable to ordinary equity holders 33.85 6.26
Weighre erage number of equity shires ing (Nos.) 0.06 0.06
Tutal of Weishted average number of shares outstanding (Nos.) 0.06) 0.06
Diluted earnings per share (INR) 614.30 113.67
Particuls As at Asat Asat
bt 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Guarantces given by banks on behalf of the company 0.80 0.80 0.80

Capital Commitment

Particulars

Asat 31 March 2024 |

As at 31 March 2023

Plant & Machinery

Exp cost of capital

Tatal

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Defined contribution plans

During the year, the Company has recognized the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employees salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards provident fund, which is a

Particulars Asat For the year ended

31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
Emplovers™ Contribution to Provident Fund 1.17 0.91
Emplovers’ Contribution to Superannuation Fund and New Pension Scheme - -
Total 1.17 0.91

Compensated absences

The company has a policy on compensared sbsences and expected cost of compensated absences (PL) is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an extemal

act

has accumulated at the Balance Sheet date. Below are the actuarial assumptions used -

v at each Ralance Sheet date using projected unit eredit method on the additional amount expected 1o be paid / availed as a result of the unused enfitlement that

Principal assumptions used for the purpose of leave encashment
Particulars

Asat
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Mortality

Discount Rate

Salary increase rufe
Employee turnover rate
Retirement age

Indian Assured Lives
Mortalitv (2012-14) Ulr.

Indinn Assured Lives
Mortalitv (2012-143 Ulr.

6.97% T.18%

6.00% T00%

6.00% 6.00%
60 Years 60 Years

Defined benefit plans
Gratuit,

The Company provides for gratuty for employees in India as per the Payment of Gramity Act, 1972, Employces who are in continuous service for a period of 3 years

Amount recognised in balance sheer

ible for gratuiry and currently the company haus funded gratuity plan. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees lust drawn
salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service,

£ Asat Asat Asar
PR 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 2.5 .87 1.73
Fair Value of plan assets af the end of the vear & - -
Net asset / (liability) recognized in Balance Sheet (2.51) (1L.8T) (1.73)
Current liability 0.59 0.48
Non-current liability 1.91 1.40 1.73
Total 2.51 1.87 173
Changes in the present value of benefit abligation
. Asat As at
Pactichlars 31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 1.87 173
Included in profit or loss
Inierest cost 0.12 0.12
Current service cost 0.45 0.42
Past service cost - “
0.57 0.55
Included in OCI
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - Financial Assumptions 0.04 -
Actuarial {enin) loss - Experience 0.02 041
0.06 (0.41)
Other
Benetit Paid 4 =
Benelit paid from plan ass = -
Present value of abli at the end of the vear 2.51 1.87




iii) Changes in the fair value of plan assers

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ing of the year -

Fair value of plan assets as at the begi
Included in profit or loss
Interest income on plan dssets

Included in OCI
Return on plan aseets arcater / {lesser) than discount rate - -

Other

Employer conrributions
Benefits paid - =

[air value of plan assers as at the end of the year

iv) Reconciliation of halance sheet amount
Particulars Asat A3
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening net (asset) liability 1.87 1.73
Expense/(income) recognised in profit and loss 0.57 .55
E: f(income) d in other comprehensive income 0.06 (0.41)

Employers contribution

Benefits paid by the company = -
Balance sheet (Asset)/Liability at the end of vear 251 187

v) Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss

Particulars Asat For the year ended
31 March 2024 21 March 2023
Current service cost .45 0.42
u. 0.12
Total expenses recagnized in the statement of prafit and loss 0.57 0.55
vi) Expense recognized in other comprehensive income
Particulars Asat For the year ended
31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
Actuarial (gains) losses arising from:
i 0.02 0.41)
0.04 -
Return on plun assets exeluding interest income - =
Net aet sains) / losses recognised in OC1 .06 (0.41)
vii) Principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuation
Faihiiars As at For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Mortality Rate Indian Assured Lives in Assured Lives

Mortaliry (2012-14) Table ¢ 12012-14) Table

Discount Rate 6.97% 7.18%
Sulary increase rute 6.00% 6.00%
Withdeawal rate 6.00% 6.00%

artained age 34.82 35.26
Retirement age 60.00 60.00

ons oceurring at the end of the reporting period. while

Particulars " Axat AtM

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Change in Discount rate
Delta effeet + 1% 231 1.73
Delta effeet - 1% 274 2.0

Change in rate of salary increase

Delia effeet + 1% 2,73 2.03
Delta effeet - 1% 232 1.74
ix) rofile of benefit pavments
Vear As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Year 1 0.59 048
Year 2 0,12 0.09
Yeor 3 0.14 0.10
Year 4 032 0.11
Year § 0.14 0.18
Year & and above 0.77 0.61

Tihe weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation is 9.59 vears,
x)  Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and entity is exposed to the following risks:

Actuarial Risk:
118 the risk that benelits will cost more than expected. This ean arise due to one of the following reasons :

Investment / Interest Risk:
The Company is exposed (o Investment / Interest risk il the relurn on the invested fund falls below the discount rate used to arrive al present value of the benefit.

Longevity Risk:
The Company 15 not exposed to risk ol the employees living longer as the benefir under the scheme ceases on the employee separating from the employer for any
reason.




Movement in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitics from 01 April 2023 to 31 March 2024:

Particulars Recognised in OCE | M‘::c""“z i
Property. plant and equipmient - 288
Right-ol-use assels - 335
Provision for employee benefils 0.01 0.63)
Provision for credit allowanees on trade receivables - (1.08)
MAT Entitlement =
Lea ilities - 3.27)
Security Deposit (0.10)
Corporate Guarantee - -
Leave Encashment 0.19)
Deferred tax liability [Net] 0.01 0.97
Movement in deferred fax assets and deferred tax liabilities from 01 April 2022 to 31 March 2023:
Particulars Recognised in OCL 3 M':::::mzs
Property. plant and equipment - 343
Right-of-use assets - -
Provision for credit allowances on trade receivables - (1.08)
Security Deposit -
Lease liahilities - -
Corporate Guarantee = 0.16
Leave Encashment (0.14)
Provision lor employee benefits 0.10 (0.47)
MAT Entitlement - 10.36)
Deferred tax liability [Net] 0.10 1.53
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40  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(a) Names of related parties and description of relationship as identified by the Company:

Name of compan Relationship
pany I

Kusumgar Private Limited Enterprises over which Key Managerial
Personnel have significant influence

Pertex Solution LLP

(b)|Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)/ othq Relationship

Siddhart Kusumpgar (Director) Key Managerial Personnel
Ankur kothari (Director) Key Managerial Personnel
Yogesh Kantilal Kusumgar (Director) Key Managerial Personnel
Kiran Nagindas shah (Director) Key Managerial Personnel

(¢) Transactions with related party during the year are as follows:

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Srno |Transactions with related parties

1 Transactions with Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel
have significant influence

Sale of services (job work charges)

Kusumgar Private Limited

Purchase of goods (Pucking Material & chemical)
Kusumgar Private Limited

Purchase of good (fabric & chemical)

Kusumgar Private Limited 360.47
Pertex Solution LLP S
Chemical Sale

Kusumgar Private Limited
Fabric sale

Kusumgar Private Limited
Total

110.71 44.45

29.59 87.18

784.68
9.24

12
(3% ]
~l

0.04

111.47
614.51

174.87
1,100.46

(d)

Sr no

Balances outstanding with related parties

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

As at
01 April 2022

(]

Deposit given

Total

Receivable as at balance sheet
Kusumgar Private Limited

1.12

Total

1.12

Payable as at balance sheet date
Kusumear Private Limited

47.76

Total

47.76
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REVENUE AS PER IND AS 115

Disaggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers:

For the year ended 31 March 2024

Revenue Revenue
Particulars from Revenue Revemue Revenue from Dyes Revenug
Processed |From Coating Eromfob From Printing and 1'_rom other Tatal
fabric Work Chemicals | ™€ products
Revenue from operation
Sale of service 110.71 110.71
Sale of goods 150.33 286.98 2.28 - 439.59
Gross revenue from contracts with customers 150.33 286.98 110.71 - 2.2 - 550.30
Less: Consideration payable to customers - - = = - -
Net revenue from contracts with customers 150.33 286.98 110.71 - 2.28 - 550.30
Geographical markets
India -
Outside India 50.33 286.98 110.71 - 2.28 - 550.30
Net revenue from confracts with customers 150.33 286.98 110.71 - 2.28 - 550.30
Timing of revenue recognition
Goods or services transferred at a point in time 150.33 286.98 110.71 - 2.28 - 550.30
Goods or Services transferred over a period of time < & - % = @ =
Net revenue from contracts with customers 150.33 286.98 110.71 - 2.28 - 550.30
Set out below is the disageregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers:
For the year ended 31 March 2023
" Revenue Revenue Eeyenue Revenue
Particulars from Revenue Revenue from Dyes
" From Job s 3 from other Total
Processed | From Coating ) From Printing and "
= Work = mise products
fabric Chemicals

Revenue from operation
Sale of service 4471 44.71
Sale of goods 890.72 39.29 0.04 930.05
Gross revenue from contracts with customers 890.72 39.29 44.71 - 0.04 - 974.77
Less: Consideration payable to customers - - - - - - -
Net revenue from contracts with cust rs 890.72 39.29 44.71 - 0.04 - 974.76
Geographical markets
India 890.72 39.28 44.71 0.04 974.75
Outside India - 0.01 - - - - 0.01
Net revenue from contracts with customers 890.72 39.29 44.71 - 0.04 - 974.76
Timing of revenue recognition
Goods or services transferred at a point in time 890.72 39.29 4471 - 0.04 - 974.76
Goods or Services transferred over a period of time - - - - - = =
Net revenue from contracts with customers 890.72 39.29 44.71 - 0.04 - 974.76

Contract Balances

The timing of revenue recognition, billings and cash collections results in receivables, unbilled revenue (Contract Asset), and deferred revenue(Contract liability) in Company’s
The following table provides information about receivables. unbilled revenue and deferred revenue from contracts with customers:

As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 31 March 5

2024 2023 01 April 2022
Trade receivables 22.71 184,22 66.90

Unbilled revenue-Contract assets
Deferred revenue-Contract liability

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company is engaged in manufacturing of technical textiles fabrics. The Chief operating decision maker (CODM -which is board of director) identified entire business as a single
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(a}

U}

(b)

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issucd equity capital, securitics premium, all other cquity reserves attributable to the sharcholders of the
Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is fo maintain a strong capital base to ensure sustained growth in business and to maximize the

sharcholders value.

The Company manages its capital structurc and makes adjustments in light of changes in cconomic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants, To maintain or
adjust the eapital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders, rerum capital to sharcholders or issuc new shares. The Company monitors capital
using a gearing ratie, which is nct debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans including interest accrued, and by

reducing cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents.

Particularg Asat Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 0T April 2022

Net Debt - 7.78 15.85
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (9.71) (1.37) (0.10)
Less: Bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents (0.86) (0.80) (0.80)
Net adjusted debt (A) (10.57) 5.61 14.95
Equity 79.41 43,61 39.04
Total equity (B) 79.41 45.61 39.04
Total debyt and equity (C) = (A)+(B) 68.83 51.22 53.99
Gearing ratio (A) /(C) - 0.11 0.28

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and cxcculc its business strategics. The Company’s financial risk management policy is sct by the

managing board. These risks arc calegorised into market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future carnings. fair values or future cash flows that may resull from a change in the price of a financial instrument,
The value ol a [inancial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, and other market changes that affeet market risk
sensitive instruments. Financial instruments afTected by market risk include borrowings and derivative financial instruments. The Company cxposed (o below two market risks-

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows ol'a financial instrument will Muctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to
the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s borrowings with Moating interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensilivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on variable borrowings. with all other variables held constant. the Company’s

profit before tax is alTeeted through the impact on Moating rate borrowings. as lollows:

Particulars

Effect on profit

1% increase/ 1% decrease

Asat
31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2023

Borrowings (Impact on profit and loss)

(.08

0.16

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of linancial loss to the Company il a customer or counterparty o a [linancial instrument fils 1o meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk arises
prineipally from the Company’s trade reccivables, loans. sceurity deposits. bank balances and other financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is 1o
prevent losses in financial assets. The Company assesses the eredit quality of the counterpartics. taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.




(©

The gross carrying amounts of following financial assets represent the maximum eredit risk exposure:

For the year

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended ended ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Trade receivables 2.7 184.22 66.90
Cash and cash equivalents 92.71 1.37 0.10
Other bank balances 0.86 0.80 0.80
Investments 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other financial asscts 295 3.82 444
Total 36.23 190.21 72.24

Balances with banks and fixed deposits are considered to have negligible risk or nil risk, as they arc maintained with high rated banks / financial institutions as approved by the

Board of dircctors.

The Company applics the Ind AS 109 simplified approach for measuring expected eredit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance (ECL) for trade receivables. The
application of simplificd approach does not require the Company 1o track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at cach

reporting date, nght from its initial recognition.

The Company uscs a provision matrix 1o measure the ECLs of trade receivables. The provision matrix is initially based on the Company's historical observed default rates.
Based on evaluation carried out and to the best estimate of management, historical loss sufficiently covers expected loss as well as future contingeneics, henee no adjustment for

forward locking factors is carricd.

Reconeiliation of loss allowance for trade receivables

Particuiars

For the year
ended
31 March 2024

For the year
ended
31 March 2023

Opening provision
Addition

Reversal

Amounts written oll

427

427

Closing provision

4.27

4.27

Other financial assers: (except fixed deposit with bank)
Based on assessment carricd out by the Company.
Reconciliation ol loss allowance [or securily deposits

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 March 2024

For the year
ended
31 March 2023

Opening provision
Addition

Reversal

Amounts wrillen off’

Closing provision

Note-Credit risk [or sceurity deposit other than above is not increased significantly.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial ebligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as

possible. that it will always have sufTicient liquidity to meet its liabilitics.

The table below summarizes the undiscounted maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilitics on an undiscounted basis:

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total

As at

31 March 2024

Borrowings - - - -
Lease liabilitics 0.40 14,62 - 15.02
Trade payables 53.06 - 53.06
Other fnancial liabilitics 10.30 - - 10.30
Total 63.76 14.62 - 78.37
As at 31 March 2023

Borrowings 7.78 - - 7.8
Leasc liabilitics - - - -
Trade payables 236.29 - 236.29
Other financial liabilitics 12,22 - - 12.22
Total 7.78 - - 7.78
As at 01 April 2022

Borrowings 9.11 6.74 - 15.85
Lease liabilities - - - -
Trade payables - - - -
Other financial linbilitics 75.12 - - 75.12
Total 84.23 6.74 - 90.97
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ENGINEERED COATED FABRIC PRIVATE LIMITED
SPECIAL PURPOSE NOTES FORMING PART OF THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCIL 2024
(Amount in INR millions. unless otherwise stated)

46 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(a2) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
The lollowing table shows the carrying amounts of financial Assets and [inancial Liabilitics which are classified as below -

Particulars Amorsed | #vroar FVTPL Total
As at 31 March 2024
Financial Assets
Current
Trade receivables 2271 - - 2.7
Cash and cash equivalents 9.71 - - 9.71
Other bank balances 0.86 - - 0.86
Other linancial asscts 0.08 - - 0.08
33.36 - - 33.36
Non-current
Investment 0.00 - 0.00
Other financial assets 2.86 - - 2.86
2.86 - - 2.86
Financial Liabilities
Current
Borrowings - " - =
Lease linbility 4.59 - - 4.39
Trade payables 53.06 - - 33.06
Other financial liabilities 10.30 - - 10.30
67.95 - - 67.95
Non-current
Borrowings - - - -
Lease liability 8.40 - - 8.40
8.40 - - 8.40
As at 31 March 2023
Financial Assets
Current
Trade receivabics 184.22 - - 184,22
Cash and cash equivalents 1.37 - - 1.37
Other bank balances 0.80 - - 0.80
Other financial assets 0.68 - - 0.68
187.07 - - 187.07
Non-current
Investment 0.00 - 0.00
Other [inancial asscts 3.14 - - 3.14
3.14 - - 3.14
Financial Liabilities
Current
Borrowings 7.78 - - 7.78
Lease liability - - - -
Trade payables 236.29 - - 236.29
Other (inancial liabilitics 12.22 - - 12.22
236.29 - - 256.29
Non-current
Borrowings - - % -
Lease liability = S & 2z
As at 1 April 2022
Financial Assets
Current
Trade receivables 66.90 - - 66.90
Cash and cash equivalents 0.10 - - 0.10
Other bank balances 0.80 - - 0.80
Other financial assets 0.68 - - 0.68
68.48 - - 68.48
Non-current
investment 0.00 - 0.00
Other financial assets 3.76 - - 3.76
3.76 - - 3.76
Financial Liabilities
Current
Borrowings 9.11 - - 2.11
Lease liability - - - -
Trade payables - - - -
Other financial liabilities 75.12 - - 75.12
84.23 - - 84.23
Non-current
Borrowings 6.74 - - 6.74
Lease liability 3 5 i &
6.74 a - 6.74




(b) Fair value hierarchy
The following is the hicrarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:
» Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilitics.
» Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, cither direetly (i.c. as prices)
* Level 3 - Inputs for the asscts or liabilitics that are not based on observable markel data (unobservable inputs).

The company has classificd its financial instruments into the three levels preseribed under the Ind AS as below-

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 31 March 2024

FVTOCI-Investments in unquoted cquity inslruments - - 0.00 0.00
Derivative [inancial instruments - loss on outstanding foreign exchange - - - 0.00
As at 31 March 2023

FVTOCI-Investments in unquoted equily instruments - - - -
Dernvative financial instruments - loss on outstanding foreign exchange - = - &
As at 01 April 2022

FVTOCI-Investiments in unquoted equily instruments - - - -
Derivative financial instruments - loss on outstanding loreign exchange - - = -




ENGINEERED COATED FABRIC PRIVATE LIMITED
SPECIAL PURPOSE NOTES FORMING PART OF THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATENENTS FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCII, 2024
(Amount in INR Millons. unless otherwise staled)

47  DETAILS OF CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENSES:

As per the applicability eriteria of Scetion 135 of the Companies Aet, 2013, Company is not covered under provisions of Corporate sociul responsibilty expenses.

48  ADDITIONAL REGULATORY INFORMATION:

(iy  Title deeds of Immovable Propertics not held in name of the Company
The Company does not own any immovable property.

(i) Fair valuation of investment property
The Company docs not have any investment property.

(iii)  Revaluation of property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets
The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year.

(iv)  Details of benami property held
The Company does nol have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property.

(v)  Wilful Defaulter
The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

{vi) Relationship with struck off companies
The Company does not have any transactions or balance outstanding with companics struck ol under scction 248 of the Companics Act, 2013,

(viiy  Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)

There are no charges or satisfaction there which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.
(viii)y Compliance with number of lavers of companies
The Company is in compliance with the number of layers preseribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number ol Layers) Rules, 2017.

(ix) Cempliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements
The Company has nol entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year,

(x)  Utilisation of Borrowed lunds and share premium:

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds 1o any other person(s) or entity(ics). including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a, dircetly or indireetly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiarics) or

b. provide any guaranice, sceurity or the like to or on behall of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund [vom any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company
shall:

a. dircetly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (Ultimate Beneliciaries) or

b. provide any guaranice, security or the like on behall of the ultimate beneliciarics.

(xi)  Undisclosed income
The Company does not have any undisclosed income which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year (previous year) in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act. 1961)

(xii)  Utilisation of Borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions
The barrowings obtained by the Company from banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for which such Joans were taken.

(xiii) Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company has not traded or invested in erypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

49 The Code on Social Security, 2020 (*Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment bencfits received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been
published in the Gazette of India. Certain sections of the code came into effect on May 03, 2023. However, the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will complete thewr
evaluation once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in the financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes eflective.

50 The Company has elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (amendment) Ordinance. 2019, Accordingly, the
Company has recognised the tax provision and measured the deferred tax assets / liabilitics at the basic tax rate of 22% plus applicable surcharge and cess.

51 Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified to confirm presentation as per Ind AS and as required by schedule TI1 of the Act.

52 These financials statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors.
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